JUN 21 2013

COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION III STATE OF WASHINGTON By_____

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON Division III

Court of Appeals Case No. 315282

CITY OF KAHLOTUS et al. V. SHARON M. LIND City of Kahlotus et al., Respondents/Plaintiff Sharon M. Lind, Appellant/Defendant pro se

Appellant's Appeal Brief (corrected)

Sharon M. Lind Appellant / Defendant pro se P.O. Box 504 Kahlotus, WA 99335 (509) 282-3229

Introduction

This is a Civil issue concerning the fee simple ownership and the use of a small section of property located in the vicinity of Kahlotus, Washington, and within Franklin County. This case has been heard in Superior Court of Franklin County, and there has been some review both in the Court of Appeals, and the Supreme Court of the State of Washington. The Appellant Sharon Lind has found, and continues to find, evidence supporting the Defenses position on this case, and has initiated this appeal to have it heard in the COA for judgment.

Assignment of Errors

MOTIONS TO RECONSIDER following the December 31, 2012 hearing.

- The Lower Court erred in it's January 25, 2013 ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR CR 11 SANCTIONS and it's March 14, 2013 AMENDED ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR CR 11 SANCTIONS AND JUDGMENT..... CP pages 50 and 18
- The Lower Court erred in January 3, 2012 when it denied the Appellants Motion to Vacate with the ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT SHARON LIND'S MOTION TO VACATE JUDGMENTS, and the subsequent MOTIONS TO RECONSIDER..... CP page 94
 The Lower Court erred when they granted on December 15, 2010 and May 9, 2011Orders in favor of the Plaintiff's in the Summary Judgments FINDINGS OF FACT, AND CONCLUSION OF LAW ORDER GRANTING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT AND JUDGMENT.

.....CP pages 98 and 96

Statement of the Case

This is an ongoing Civil case relating to a property issue between the Appellant Sharon Lind, and the Respondents: The City of Kahlotus, and the Robert Hagans family. Much of this case can be found in the excerpts from the Court file presented for review. In the summer of 2008 the City held a public meeting to discuss upcoming street improvements. Sharon Lind told the City that this was not a city street, and was her property. Following actions by the City and the Hagans family Lind then blocked this section of her property in 2009. The Hagans and the City initiated a lawsuit in Superior Court, and Lind was served in January 2010. The Plaintiff's called for the Summary Judgment in October of 2010, and the Court found in the favor of the Plaintiff's based primarily on a 1905 plat, a 1994 survey, and statements by the Hagans. disregarding the excellent work done by Attorney John Ziobro. Following the Summary Judgment Lind found good evidence to call into question what the Plaintiff's had presented in Court. Evidence, which in the Defendant Lind's opinion would be enough to dismiss the case had it not already have gone to Summary Judgment. Lind has instead attempted to present this case for review in the Lower Court using CR 60 Motions to Vacate/Amend Judgments. With

their denial, Lind has now submitted this appeal to the COA for it's review and Judgment.

Statutes et al.

Article 1, Section 3 of the Constitution of the State of Washington

		pg 18	
Civil Rule 60		pg 15	
AGO s 1996 Platting and Subdivisions		pg 21	
RCW 5.18.160 Requirement for each Plat filed for record CP 224			
		pg 0	
RCW 5.18. 190 5 years to correct		Pg 6	
RCW 5.18.170		pg 6	
Title 64 and Title 65		pg 6	
1892 Federal Land Patent		pg 19	
Statute of Frauds		pg 18	
Amendments 5 and 14 of the U.S. Constitution Due Process			
		pg 18	
42 U.S.C. § 1983.		pg 18	

Background on case

Following the Summary Judgment of December 2010 granted in favor of the Plaintiffs, Appellant Sharon Lind has found evidence which shows conclusively that no road has existed here, and that the fee simple ownership of the area belongs to the property owner, not the City. In Lind's opinion documents presented into the court file make has made this issue as presented in Court moot, as the property in guestion was never within the City Limits of Kahlotus. The City did not establish a presence there under the laws as they exist under the Constitutions of either the State of Federal Government, or by the laws and statutes for the State of Washington. The Gillocks plat itself was never properly recorded, and as a contract subject to the Statue of Frauds failed in the transfer of this property to the City. The City failed in it's obligation to get the agreement properly recorded, and to make the proper correction within the time frame required, presently as **RCW 58.17.170**, it was not recorded in the original Book of Plats with the County, and as such in **Title 64...** was void. Documents placed into the County record in the following decades to fix the pieces were done outside of this timeframe. CP 76 to 81.

Regardless of this, the City has established through historic use some right of ways within the original Gillocks plat. The road that is now called Courtright Street appears to have been the unnamed alley in the original plat. The original Courtright Street ran just south of the quarter section line, as can be seen in the Gillocks plat map, and the Petition for Incorporation CP 115, 194, 196, 203, 207, 209. In the 1950's the City "shrugged", and shifted lots and streets around to accommodate a new football field for the school. Streets running through the new field were closed, and others were established along the periphery. This appears to be what happened to the original Courtright Street, as the street as it exist now clearly does not fit with the original Gillocks plat CP 30, 31and 115, and Appendix iv,v. The City failed to get these actions recorded with the County until a few years ago, and for tax purposes the Assessors Office seems to have shifted the whole plat south at some point to accommodate the new location of Courtright Street. This has resulted in lots being laid on the vertical side of the cliff face just south of town.

In August of 2000 the defendant purchased the parcel of property on which the house is located. This originally consisted of a series of combined lots and straddled the City Limits of Kahlotus. At the

time of purchase there was no "road" going through this area, but instead it consisted of a dirt trail covered in tall weeds. It could be seen that there had been vehicles driven through here previously, but at that time of purchase the western side of this trail, that borders the Hagans property, was blocked by a couple of small concrete culverts and weeds. There was no evidence that the City had every used or maintained this trail as a street, or had done any actions to establish a street. The Appellant purchased the property/parcel confident that this was part of the purchase. It was in fact the parking area for the house. The Appellant was a frequent visitor to this property during the two months it took the property to close, and in all that time saw no evidence that there were vehicles driven through there. After the Appellant had taken possession of the house she was approached by the neighbor (Respondent Hagans), who asked her permission to leave the area next to the house open "for emergency vehicles". This property is at the edge of town, and borders patureland, and as this had been a particularly hot and dry summer with numerous brush fires in and around town, this seemed a reasonable request, and similar actions were done for the rest of the property as well. Permission was not given,

however, to establish a road and allow the neighbors in and out privileges. The Appellant had in fact made plans to block this area from the start with a rock fountain.

In the time period between 2005 and 2007, following increased activities in the area by the Respondents, The City of Kahlotus et al., the Appellant approached the then current Mayor of Kahlotus Donna Fone about her concerns with her property. The Mayor requested that Lind wait before starting any actions because the County was doing an extensive survey of the County, and it would be a little while before they got to Kahlotus. The survey crews did come through town in 2007 and 2008. In the summer of 2008 the Appellant was told by a Kahlotus City Council member that there was going to be a public meeting where the City Council would discuss which streets to keep open, and which to close. The Appellant Lind attended this meeting, and told the City Council that this was not a street. This was further supported that summer when the acting City Planner Mike Corcoran from BFCG presented to the City Council the most recent and updated map, clearly showing that the City Limits for Kahlotus ran right through Lind's house, and did not extend further south than this. Following the meeting, and in the presence of the entire City Council, the Mayor

Donald Watt told Lind that if she could find any evidence that the City closed this road, or like action, he would accept it. He grew up in that town, and he knew that there was never a road there. There was no disagreement from any of the City Council members, many of whom had also grown up in that town. As stated, during that same summer the acting City Planner presented an overview map of the City of Kahlotus to the City Council. On that map it clearly showed the official City Limits running through the middle of the house, and not encompassing the area now referred to as "Gillocks Street" at all. Later in the summer of 2008 the City Planner had the City Council vote on an Ordinance modifying the original 1907 legal description of Kahlotus, as can be found on the Petition for Incorporation which was presented to the County Commissioners in 1907. This was pending the election results in the fall 1907 elections and I have yet to find evidence that they occurred. This Ordinance, done without any firm documentation, and with the support of the County, slipped the City Limits south approximately 120 feet.

The Appellant spent the next months doing a thorough research of the City and County records, and made several records request to the local and county governments. What was discovered is that there were very few actions done by the City that were recorded with the County, or properly documented. While doing this research in the Winter of 2009 the Appellant made a Request to Vacate to the City Council of Kahlotus. This was not an admission that there was a "street" here, but what seemed the most expedient way to get an action recorded by the City and the County. There was now a new mayor, a close friend of the Hagans family Richard Halverson, and he laughed while he read the petition. At the following City Council meeting he had determined on his own and without presenting it to the City Council for discussion, that he would not honor the petition.

After the petition to vacate was presented, the Appellant did find in the Minutes of the City of Kahlotus from 1967 actions taken by the City which directly related to this property, and which they had been requested to find. They concerned the closure of Pine Street, and the unnamed alley, as described in Gillocks Addition to the Town of Hardersburg. While recorded as a closure, the actions were clearly those of a vacation, and the intent was such. The City has used closed and vacation interchangeably, and whatever word is used is dependant on the educational level of the person typing the document. As with most other actions done by the City of Kahlotus, this was not recorded with the County. The Appellant presented this information to the next City Council meeting, and was met with anger and disbelief by the mayor Halverson and the Hagans family. One of Richard Halversons statements was "It's been a City Street long enough, we are not going to switch it back!"

I also presented this information to a property attorney, who upon examining this and the unencumbered Deed and Title to the property said that this should be enough to present before a Judge. A letter by the attorney was written to the City nicely requesting that they honor what was found, but it was ignored. The Appellant Lind, knowing that leaving this area open to traffic left her open to an adverse possession claim, put barriers back where they had existed when the property was purchased in 2000. Richard Halverson, on his own authority as mayor, and at the request of the Hagans family, had the Appellant criminally charged in the spring of 2009, and again in the spring of 2010. In District Court the Prosecution, twice, based on the public records could not prove that the City owned this property, and the cases were dismissed without prejudice. The Appellant had meanwhile obtained a different property attorney, who's advice was to file an action for Quiet Title. In the summer of 2009 it was learned that the

Mayor Halverson was prepared to file a civil lawsuit against the Appellant, again based on their own authority as mayor and without bringing this to the City Council. And pending the fall election for Mayor in which Lind was also running. Following the election this issue was formally presented to the City Council for the first time. The vote was to turn the issue over to the City Attorney to see who actually owned the property, and there was no mention of a pending lawsuit. In January 2010 the lawsuit was served on the Appellant. Before the end of the year the Summary Judgments was called by the Respondents/ Plaintiffs, with the initial Order signed on December 15, 2010, and again on May 9, 2011. These were in favor of the Plaintiffs, and based on the same information that had been previously presented in criminal Court. The Appellant, upon the discovery of new information wholly in their favor, and not made available at the time of the Summary Judgment, presented this new information into the Court file, and on October 10, 2011 presented these new documents in Court through an unnamed Motion, and no action was taken. A Motion to Vacate, following CR60 rules, was filed in November 2011. This Motion was denied on December 12, 2011, with the Order being signed on January 3, 2012. This action was appealed by Lind.

which was dismissed in October 2012 due to a timing issue. While this appeal was in the Appellant Court Lind did find a map. produced by BFCG for the City of Kahlotus, that put the pieces of the property puzzle together. This map showed the actual location of the quarter section line, from which the plats and the properties, and the City Limits, are derived. Other maps made available did not show any evidence of this lines location. The Appellant does have some education in map reading, so she promptly contacted BFCG with a public records request in the summer of 2012. She was presented with several pages of correspondences between BFCG ,and the City of Kahotus, the County, and the State. Following the discovery this and of more new information not made available at the Summary Judgment, or the prior Motion to Vacate CR60, the Appellant again made a request to have the case reviewed through a Motion to Vacate CR60 3b. Again this Motion was denied based on the timing issue, and Due Diligence. The denial of this Motion and the granting of CR11 sanctions to the Plaintiffs, and the subsequent Motions to Reconsider and as they relate back down through the layers to the original Summary Judgments are what the Appellant is now presenting to Court of Appeals for Review and Judgment.

Arguments

- A. The Motion to Vacate following Civil Rule 60 provides an opportunity that can be used to address cases where other solutions may not be readily available. I would certainly include this Case within this category. I have twice presented a Motion to Vacate to the Lower Court with the hope that the information that has been presented by me to Court will be reviewed in it's entirety from the Court file, as is one of the requirements of a CR 60 Motion to Vacate. Decisions in my understanding are not made solely on the recent documents and pleadings, but on the whole case with what is provide in the Court file.
- B. The most recent The Motion to Vacate filed in December 2012 was denied primarily on the timing issue as per CR 60, and the requirement that the there be shown "Due Diligence" in researching the case before the Motion is made. The timing of a CR 60 Motion is within one year of the most recent action in the case of CR60(b)(2) New information. The Motion was filed in the Lower Court in December 2012, and the primary Order I was requesting to vacate, as well as the original Summary Judgments, was the January 3, 2012 with the signing of the

Order Denying the previous Motion to Vacate. Clearly this was within the one year requirement, and should not be considered outside of the one year timeframe.

C. The Case was also denied that while I did produce new information, there is no reason to believe that it could not have been found through "Due Diligence" prior to the Summary Judgment. The term due diligence is also a vague term with no set standard to describe it, but does imply that some care be taken before things are initiated and there no set standard to let anyone know when they have me or exceeded this requirement. Due Diligence is primarily a contract term for people who initiate, or respond to, the request for a contract. It should not be used the same way when someone is defending themselves from other people's actions.

The Merriam-Webster definition of "due diligence" is 1 : the care that a reasonable person exercises to avoid harm to other persons or their property 2 : research and analysis of a company or organization done in preparation for a business transaction .

Clearly neither one of these applies to a Defendant's need to find all of this information prior to an action initiated by someone else. In Court the Defendace did fulfill this requirement by presenting the clean and unencumbered Statutory Warrantee Deed, Title, and Tax Records, the primary documents that support property ownership. And they presented an action by the Plaintiff's to show that in the past they had no interest in the area now in question. Due Diligence was, however, the responsibility of the Plaintiffs/Respondents before they initiated the lawsuit. Not only does it appear that the Plaintiffs failed in this respect, it was not up to the Defendant to discovery evidence and information that should have been presented in Court by the Plaintiffs at the time the Judgments were made. Evidence which obviously may have been in their favor in Court.

D. This leads to some of the other parts of a CR 60 Motion to Vacate. While the most recent Motion was based primarily, but not exclusively, on new information, I also have in the Court documents references to 3(b)(3) Fraud and Misrepresentation. I would also like to include 3(b) 4, and 3(b) 11, as it has been clearly shown that that the circumstances of the case warrant a review due to other circumstances, and that has been my main point and intent all through the Court proceedings. Mainly that

this issue should never have been brought to Court by the Plaintiff's in this manner, as the area is in my opinion and based on my research, is outside of the City Limits of Kahlotus. No legal actions were initiated to properly bring this area within the City Limits. Due process as required by both the **Constitution of the State of Washington** and the Federal Constitution under **Amendments 5 and 14** has not been followed at all, and no annexation took place. There has been no written contract in the conveyance of this property, as required by the **Stature of Frauds.** The City has no legal right to their actions in this area. As submitted to the Court in one of the original 2010 memorandums for the Summary Judgment, the City's action to deprive Defendant Lind of her property is subject to claims under **42 U.S.C. § 1983.** CP 382.

E. The granting of the CR 11 Sanctions to the Plaintiff was inappropriate. The Defendant did present new information to the Court within the one year requirement, and did show the due diligence required in presenting the evidence prior to the hearing. The Motions to Vacate should not have been denied. And it has been remarked by the Lower Court during previous attempts by the Respondents to collect attorney fees that this case is not frivolous.

- F. The new information that I presented in Court regarding the correspondences between the City of Kahlotus, and BFCG, the County, and the State, as well as the related documents and surveys, CP 88 to 92 further support my claim that of CR 60 (b) (3) that the Plaintiff's et al. wished to misrepresented the evidence that they produced in Court. This was a willing omission. Most of this information was done "in house", and not available in the public record. The City officials, particularly the City Clerk Sharon McCaleb, and the mayor Richard Halverson knew that I was looking for this information. I spent a great deal of time in City Hall doing the research, and made numerous public records request for just this information, so it should have been made available to me, or presented in the discoveries, prior to the Summary Judgment.
- G. What has become clear as this case has developed is that the original title of this property as determined by the 1892 Land
 Patent CP 82, of which Appellant Lind is a direct assignee. (see Appendix i where some of this has been pulled out.) Property as per a land patent is conveyed through contracts. This parcel was

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