**FILED**

AUG 23 2013

COURT OF APPEALS  
DIVISION III  
STATE OF WASHINGTON  
By \_\_\_\_\_

NO. 315282

---

**COURT OF APPEALS FOR DIVISION III**

**STATE OF WASHINGTON**

---

CITY OF KAHLOTUS, et al.

Respondent,

vs.

SHARON M. LIND,

Appellant.

---

**RESPONDENT'S REPLY BRIEF**

---

LEAVY, SCHULTZ, DAVIS,  
CLARE & RUFF, P.S.  
ANDREA J. CLARE, WSBA NO. 37889  
2415 W. Falls Avenue  
Kennewick, WA 99336  
509-736-1330

**

## **I. STATEMENT OF CASE**

Appellant Sharon Lind owns lots 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13, located in Gillock's Addition to Hardersburg (present day Kahlotus), according to the records of Franklin County. (CP 454, 449). Gillock's Street is an alley/street which separates lots 6, 7, 8, and 9 from lots 10, 11., 12 and 13 in Gillock's Addition<sup>1</sup>. Id. Gillock's Street is the subject of this litigation.

The following is a comprehensive description of the procedural history for which this litigation progressed. Such exhaustive statement is necessary to properly describe and frame the issues to which Ms. Linds attempts to present on appeal. Likewise, the city requests an award of fees and costs on appeal and therefore the procedural history serves as a factual basis for such award due to the ongoing repeated attempts to cause the same underlying issues back before the court for re-litigation and/or reconsideration.

---

<sup>1</sup> Throughout this brief, the street/alley in dispute shall be referred to as "Gillock's Street".

On December 31, 2009, the city of Kahlotus filed a complaint for abatement of nuisance and injunction against Sharon Lind. (CP 454-457). The complaint alleges that Gillock's Street, a street owned by the city of Kahlotus, was blocked by Sharon Lind (hereinafter Lind). (CP 454). The city sought an injunction to prevent Lind from continuing to block the street. (CP 455). Sharon Lind retained attorney, John Ziobro, and filed an answer and counterclaim on February 11, 2010. (CP 449-451). In her answer, Lind sought an order quieting title in regards to the street as well as damages pursuant to a § 1983 claim. Shortly thereafter, third parties, Robert and Marsha Hagans as well as John Greer were added to the suit by Sharon Lind.

On September 22, 2010 the city of Kahlotus filed a motion for summary judgment to determine, as a matter of law, that the city is the fee simple owner to the street/alley subject to the

lawsuit. (CP 393-394). In the event the court found that the city of Kahlotus had vacated the Gillock's Street, the city requested summary judgment that it had acquired ownership by virtue of adverse possession. Finally, the city moved for summary judgment on Lind's §1983 claim. In support of the city's motion, the declaration of Sharon McCaleb, City

Clerk was filed with supporting property records. (CP 395-448).

In response, Lind filed an affidavit and memorandum in opposition to the City's motion on October 14, 2010. (CP 336-370, CP 371-390). Lind further requested the court grant relief in her favor as to ownership of the Gillock's Street. Numerous city and county records obtained through public records requests and/or discovery as well as other discoverable materials (i.e. requests for admission/responses to interrogatories) were submitted by Lind and her attorney in support of Lind's position. (See CP 322-370). The City replied by filing a rebuttal memorandum and declaration of Steve Marks, an employee of the Franklin County Assessor's office. (CP 320-321).

Oral arguments were presented by each side at the summary judgment hearing held October 25, 2010 before Commissioner Jerri Potts. (CP 296-297). However, no recording of the hearing was made so the parties, through their legal representatives, were allowed to again present oral arguments for the record on November 22, 2010. (CP 294-295). The court then took the matter under advisement. Id.

On November 29, 2010, Commissioner Potts ruled in open court with all parties present. She granted summary judgment to the City

regarding ownership of Gillock's Street and dismissed Lind's §1983 claim. (CP 290). Counsel for the City volunteered to prepare an order and findings. Id.

The parties returned for presentment of the findings on December 15, 2010. (CP 283). Counsel for Lind only objected to section (d) of the proposed findings. Id. The court removed section (r) and adopted the findings establishing "judgment that the City of Kahlotus is the fee simple owner of all right, title, and interest to the street/alley known as Gillock's Street and that the defendants do not have any right, title, interest, estate, or interest in or lien upon the Gillock's Street...." (CP 278-282). The findings were filed December 15, 2010. Id.

Thereafter, on April 22, 2011, Lind personally sent a letter to Commissioner Potts describing a 1993 lawsuit between other parties. (CP 277). Court administration wrote a letter in response to indicate that the letter was considered ex parte contact, no official court response would be given, and that the letter would be made part of the case file. (CP 276).

In light of the court's ruling, the City then motioned for summary judgment on its original request for an injunction. A summary judgment hearing was held May 9, 2011 before the Honorable Judge Vic



Vanderschoor. (CP 275). The court heard arguments from both attorneys and ruled in open court for the City. Id. Thus, on May 9, 2012, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law Granting Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment and Injunction were entered by the Court to prevent Lind from placing cones and other obstructions across the street. (CP 273-274).

In response, Lind then motioned for leave to amend her complaint. (CP 272). A hearing was held on June 20, 2011, with all attorneys present to address the motion. (CP 271). Judge Vanderschoor denied Lind's motion. Id. On July 22, 2011, a formal order was signed by Judge Vanderschoor, Lind's attorney, John Ziobro, and counsel for the City. (CP 186-187). No appeal was ever filed relating to the denial of this motion.

The following court action occurred on September 9, 2011, wherein attorney John Ziobro filed a notice to withdraw as counsel of record for Sharon Lind. Proceeding pro se, Sharon Lind filed a motion to vacate judgment pursuant to CR 60(b)(3)<sup>2</sup> and (4)<sup>3</sup> regarding both Commissioner Potts' December 15, 2010 order as well as Judge

---

<sup>2</sup> CR 60(b)(3) provides: "Newly discovered evidence which by due diligence could not have been discovered in time to move for a new trial under rule 59(b)."

<sup>3</sup> CR 60(b)(4) provides: "Fraud, misrepresentation, or other misconduct of an adverse party."

Vanderschoor's May 15, 2011 order. (CP 184-185). Specifically, Lind's motion was based upon "[t]he evidence provided for this is what has already been presented to the Court, and placed in the Superior Court file for this case, and in forthcoming Declarations". Id. Lind also filed a declaration of Sharon Lind to support her position. (CP 171-183).

The City filed its response to Lind's motion to vacate on December 9, 2011. (CP 168-170). The City argued that Lind failed to follow the proper procedure outlined in CR 60 motions as follows: 1) to obtain and serve a show cause order, 2) the motion must be made within a reasonable time and for reasons indicated in CR 60(b)(1), (2), or (3) not more than one year after judgment, order or proceeding was entered or taken, and finally 3) all the evidence now relied upon by Lind was available and discoverable by Lind prior to entry of the judgments. Id. Thus, Lind's motion is not timely or proper. The third party defendants also filed a response to Lind's motion with arguments along the same lines. (CP 165-167).

Lind's motion to vacate was heard by the Honorable Carrie Runge on December 12, 2011. (CP 164). Judge Runge denied the motion. Id. Four days thereafter, on December 16, 2011, Lind filed a motion to

reconsider. (CP 161-163). Judge Runge issued her ruling on December 22, 2011 denying Lind's motion for reconsideration. (CP 158-159).

Undeterred and mistaken, Lind filed an additional declaration to support her previous motion for reconsideration on December 29, 2011. (CP 148-157). To finalize the record, the City noted a hearing to present an order denying Lind's motion to vacate the former orders. A presentment hearing was held January 3, 2012. (CP 147). Attorney for the City and Sharon Lind were both present. Id. Judge Runge signed the order denying Lind's motion to vacate judgments. (CP 145-146). The court found that Lind had not presented any newly discovered evidence by which due diligence could not have been discovered in time to move for a new trial under CR 59(b); that most, if not all, the evidence presented by Lind in support of her motion was available in the public records which could have been discovered with due diligence; that the argument and evidence presented by Lind did not show any fraud, misrepresentation, or other misconduct of the City; and that Lind's motions were brought nearly a year after its entry such was not considered reasonable time. Id.

Again, undeterred and mistakenly assuming she had opportunity to respond to the court's latest order, Lind filed another motion for

reconsideration and supplemental declaration in furtherance of her motion to vacate on January 26, 2012. (CP 139-144). In response, Judge Runge authored a letter to Ms. Lind describing that her January 26, 2012 motion failed to meet the 10 day deadline for reconsideration to her January 3, 2012 ruling. (CP 127).

Sharon Lind first sought appeal with Division III of the Court of Appeals on February 3, 2012. (CP 129). Presumably, Lind appealed the order denying her motion to vacate. However, Lind references her four arguments to the Superior Court. *Id.* Commissioner Joyce McCown issued her ruling on behalf of the Court of Appeals on April 9, 2012. (CP 107-108). The ruling provided that Ms. Lind had failed to establish extraordinary circumstances as required by RAP 18.8(b) that would warrant an extension of time for the filing of a notice of appeal and therefore the City's motion to dismiss was granted. (CP 108). Said decision became final on October 30, 2012. (CP 106).

Meanwhile, the third party defendants sought relief by way of sanctions and attorney fees for the ongoing motion practice exercised by Lind. (CP 130-138). On December 13, 2012, Lind filed a motion for show cause for motion to amend judgments/orders. (CP 103-105). Sharon Lind

relentlessly sought to change the court's ruling over and over. In said motion for show cause, Lind attempted to showcase a new argument wherein her property was outside official city limits. Id. However, Lind claimed therein that "[m]uch of the evidence provided for this is what has already been presented to the Court and can be found in the Court files for this case...."

The City filed its response to Lind's second motion to vacate on December 31, 2012. (CP 73-75). The City requested attorney fees for the ongoing redundant motions. Id. The City cited RCW 4.84.185 for frivolous claims/motions, CR 11 for sanctions, and fairness as the motion had previously been raised and adjudicated in support of its motion for fees. Id. Lind's second motion to vacate was denied by the Honorable Vic Vanderschoor on December 31, 2012. (CP 70).

Sharon Lind again filed for reconsideration on January 4, 2013. (CP 64-68). Said reconsideration motion ostensibly seeks reconsideration of the court's December 31, 2012 ruling but re-argues Lind's position surrounding the summary judgment rulings. Id. Judge Vanderschoor denied Lind's reconsideration motion on January 14, 2013. (CP 61-62).

On January 25, 2013, the City obtains an order denying Lind's

motion to vacate and granting sanctions. (CP 50-54). Accordingly, Lind seizes the opportunity to move again for reconsideration on February 4, 2013. (CP 49). Judge Vanderschoor again denies reconsideration the same day. (CP 46-47). In response, Lind files another motion for reconsideration on February 15, 2013 seeking the court reconsider its previous denial of her last motion for reconsideration. (CP 37-40). On February 27, 2013, Judge Vanderschoor again denies Lind's third motion for reconsideration. (CP 34-35).

Finally, Lind files her forth and last motion for reconsideration on March 1, 2013. (CP 25-33). On March 4, 2013, Judge Vanderschoor again denies the fourth motion for reconsideration and comments "do not request reconsideration again - try the court of appeals". (CP 22-23). Following such judicial advise, Sharon Lind attempts the appeal process for the second time by filing a notice of appeal to the order denying Lind's motion to vacate and order granting sanctions on March 25, 2013. (CP 6).

## **II. ARGUMENT**

### **A. LIND'S APPEAL IS UNTIMELY AND SHOULD BE DISMISSED.**

Sharon Lind's first appeal to this court dated February 2, 2012 has

been resolved. (See CP 129 and 106-108). The issues thereto should not be presented nor re-addressed herein. However, Ms. Lind again requests this court to examine the court's previous rulings on summary judgment decided long ago. *See* Appellant's Appeal Brief (corrected). RAP 18.8(b) governs disposition of untimely appeals. State v. Ashbaugh, 90 Wash.2d 432, 438, 583 P.2d 1206 (1978). RAP 18.8(b) provides:

“The appellate court will only in extraordinary circumstances and to prevent a gross miscarriage of justice extend the time within which a party must file a notice of appeal ... The appellate court will ordinarily hold that the desirability of finality of decisions outweighs the privilege of a litigant to obtain an extension of time under this section.”

The court applies this test rigorously. Consequently, there are very few instances in which Washington appellate courts have found that this test was satisfied. *See Reichelt v. Raymark Indus., Inc.*, 52 Wash.App. 763, 765, 764 P.2d 653 (1988). The burden is on Lind to provide “sufficient excuse for [his] failure to file a timely notice of appeal” and to demonstrate “sound reasons to abandon the [judicial] preference for finality.” Schaeferco, Inc. v. Columbia River Gorge Comm'n, 121 Wash.2d 366, 368, 849 P.2d 1225 (1993). Lind has failed to meet this burden with regard to the previous issues already determined as well as the latest orders

she seeks review.

The orders Lind appeals this time concern the January 25, 2013 order denying Lind's motion to vacate and granting sanctions. Lind timely sought reconsideration of said order by filing on February 4, 2013. However, the court denied her motion for reconsideration on February 5, 2013. While Lind inappropriately continued to file repeated motions for reconsideration after each subsequent denial, such action does not extend the time for appeal. See RAP 5.2(e). Thus, Lind had 30 days from February 5, 2013 to file a timely notice of appeal. RAP 5.2(a). Lind's notice of appeal dated March 25, 2013 is untimely and therefore should be denied.

**B . IN THE EVENT THE AMENDED ORDERS GRANTING SANCTIONS AND JUDGMENT DATED MARCH 14, 2013 ARE USED FOR PURPOSES OF CALCULATING TIME, LIND FAILS TO SHOW THAT THE COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION.**

The standard of review for a decision granting a motion to vacate under CR 60(b) is abuse of discretion. Luckett v. Boeing Co., 98 Wash.App. 307, 309, 989 P.2d 1144 (1999). A court abuses its discretion



when its decision is based on untenable grounds or reasoning. Luckett, 98 Wash.App. at 309, 989 P.2d 1144; Barr v. MacGugan, 119 Wash. App. 43, 45-46, 78 P.3d 660, 662 (2003). Ms. Lind fails to identify this issue and/or argue that the lower court has abused its discretion with regard to its refusal to vacate the judgment she seeks.

Nevertheless, on review of an order denying a motion to vacate, only ‘the propriety of the denial not the impropriety of the underlying judgment’ is before the reviewing court.” State v. Gaut, 111 Wash.App. 875, 881, 46 P.3d 832 (2002) (quoting Bjurstrom v. Campbell, 27 Wash.App. 449, 450-51, 618 P.2d 533 (1980)). There is simply nothing in the record indicating that the lower court acted wrongfully in any way or based its decision on untenable grounds. While Ms. Lind wishes to re-litigate her case in whole, such issues are not before this court. Hence, she has not provided a sufficient basis to warrant review of the lower court’s discretionary ruling.

CR 60(b) permits a court to vacate a final judgment for reasons such as excusable neglect, unavoidable casualty or misfortune preventing the party from prosecuting or defending, or any other reason justifying relief from the operation of the judgment. CR 60(b)(1), (9), (11). “The use

of CR 60(b) (11) “should be confined to situations involving extraordinary circumstances not covered by any other section of the rule.” Gustafson v. Gustafson, 54 Wash.App. 66, 75, 772 P.2d 1031 (1989) (quoting In re Marriage of Flannagan, 42 Wash.App. at 221, 709 P.2d 1247 (1985)). Ms. Lind further fails to address any potential CR 60 concerns to justify review of the lower court’s ruling denying her vacation. As a result of Ms. Lind’s insufficient showing, the appeal must be denied.

**C. THE CITY SHOULD BE AWARDED FEES AND COSTS.**

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